
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  September 11, 2024 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting 

is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and 
is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant 
to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board 
also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 
Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. 
 

(b) The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 18, 2024 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting will take place 
in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 

 
 

 
 

 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM September 4, 2024   

  6.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7.  LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS – Matt Hawkins 

• Colin Davids, 20 years of service 

• Stephanie Gilbert, 10 years of service 

• Dustin Thompson, 10 years of service 

  8. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE – Matt Hawkins 

  9. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE – Matt Hawkins 

 

 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

a) Polk County Contract No. 24-147, Criminal Justice Commission 
           (Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 

 
b) Polk County Order No. 24-09, Ratify the Hearings Officer’s Decisions 
 On an Appeal; Planning File FORD 23-01 
 (Hannah Brickner, Associate Planner) 

 

                                         

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    
 
   



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

   POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS 
***************************** 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any 
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering 
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse, 
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the 
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse. 

***************************** 

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

 

The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the 
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in 
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require 
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule 
it accordingly. 

***************************** 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT 

Land Use 
 
1. Chairman opens hearing. 
 a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement. 
 b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest). 
2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit). 
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit). 
4.  Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and 

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply 
note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is 
limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE 
TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND 
TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE. 

 a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal. 
 b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney, 

consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the 
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The 
Chairman may require proof of designation. 

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit). 
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).  
 a. Staff. 
 b. Applicant (Appellant). 
 c. Individuals testifying. 
7. Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record. 
8. Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision. 
9. The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21 

days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk 
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be 
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing 
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room. 

 

 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES September 4, 2024  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Gordon were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 18, 2024 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting 
will take place in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None 
 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF August 21, 2024 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF August 21, 2024. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
7. PROCLAMATION NO. 24-04 IN THE MATTER OF VOTERS REGISTRATION 
 Commissioner Gordon dedicated this to his grandmother, who was born in 1911, and then read 

aloud Proclamation No. 24-04 for the record. All Commissioners signed the proclamation. 
 

 
 
  



September 4, 2024 
Page 2 

 

  

The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

 
 
 
 
There no need for an executive session and before Commissioner Pope adjourned the 
meeting he wanted to state on the record that there was another fatality on HWY 22 
yesterday and the he wanted to share the Boards frustration with how long it is taking to 
make a safer intersection at HWY 22 and 51. Commissioner Mordhorst stated that they 
are moving forward with ODOT and they are close to moving into the design acceptance 
phase. He also shared his frustrations with having to follow all the legalities and 
necessary steps that they have to follow in order to get this done. Commissioner 
Mordhorst urged the public to send letters and emails to Washington D.C. and to their 
State Representatives and Senators.   
 
Commissioner Pope then adjourned the meeting at 9:07 a.m.  
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Craig Pope, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: September 11, 2024 

a) Polk County Ordinance No. 24-05, In the matter of PA 24-01 & ZC 24-01 
(Sidney Mulder, Planning Manager) 
 

b) Polk County Resolution No. 24-10, In the matter of adopting the updated Polk County 
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(Eric Knudson, Senior Planner) 

 
c) Declaring Surplus Property 

(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY poLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3174

(503) 623-1888 *nax (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

DATE: September 6,2024

SUBJECT: Reclassification of a Community Resource Connector II

Wednesday - September Ll, 2024 (5 minutes)

RECOMMENDATION:
The Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Community Resource Connector II

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
It ir r.*-mended that Edgar Hernandez in the Family and Community Outreach department be

reclassified from a Community Resource Connector II to the Lead Community Resource Connector.

Recently the Lead Community Resource Connector was promoted to a new position and Edgar has

taken on the duties of the Lead Community Resource Connector. Thus, the reason we are requesting

this reclassification for Edgar.

Edgar is currently at step 4 of the Community Resource Connector II position which is $4,049 monthly' If
the reclassification is approved, he will move to step 4 of the Lead Community Resource Connector

position which is $4,211.

Should the reclassification be approved it would be effective October 1,2024.

FISCAL IMPACT:
fttir .".tu*incation will have an impact on the budget for FY 24-25 of approximately $3,000

including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months.



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3I74

(s03) 623-1888 *FAx (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

DATE: September 6,2024

SUBJECT: Reclassification of a Health Services Administrative Specialist I

Wednesday - September 11, 2024 (5 minutes)

RECOMMENDATION:
fft" g*ia of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Health Services Administrative Specialist

I.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
It is reco--ended that Marsha Ragan in the Health Services Department be reclassified from a Health

Services Administrative Specialist I to a Health Services Administrative Specialist II. Marsha has

been working out of class for many months and performed at a very high level. It is now time to make

her out of class work permanent by reclassiffing her to the new position of an HS Administrative

Specialist IL

Marsha is currently at step 3 of the Health Services Administrative Specialist I position which is $3,861

monthly. If the reclassification is approved, she will move to step 2 of the Health Services Administrative

Specialist II position which is $4,113.

Should the reclassification be approved it would be effective September I,2024.

FISCAL IMPACT:
fttir r..tussification will have an impact on the budget for FY 24-25 of approximately $4,000

including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months.



Contract  Review Sheet

Staff Contact:  

Title:  

Department:

Consent Calendar Date:  

Contractor Name:  

Address:  

Background/Discussion: 

    Thru: 
City, State, Zip: 
Effective Dates - From: 
Contract Amount: $ 

Fiscal Impact:  

Recommendation:  

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:   

Name:  

Name:  

Name:

E-mail:  

E-mail:  

E-mail:

Source Selection: 
Sole Source 

Competitive Quotes 

Formal Bid

Request for Proposals

Personal Services

Special/Exempt Procurement (explain below): 

_______________________________________________

_______________________________________________



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 1 of 15 

BHD-25-24 GRANT AGREEMENT 

CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEFLECTION GRANT PROGRAM 

Agreement Number: BHD-25-24 

This grant agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of the date the Agreement is fully executed, is 
between the State of Oregon, acting through its Oregon Criminal Justice Commission (“CJC” or 
“State”), and Polk County (“Recipient”). This Agreement becomes effective only when fully signed 
and approved as required by applicable law (“Effective Date”). Unless extended or terminated 
earlier in accordance with its terms, this Agreement shall expire December 31, 2025. 

This Agreement consists of this document and the following documents, all of which are attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference: 

Exhibit A: Contact Information, Project Description and Reporting Requirements 

Exhibit B: Subagreement Insurance Requirements 

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, the 
language in the document with the highest precedent shall control. The precedence each of the 
following documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence to 
lowest precedence: this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit B. 

SECTION 1: KEY GRANT TERMS 

The following capitalized terms have the meanings assigned below. 

Grant Amount: $239,314.00 

Completion Deadline: June 30, 2025 

SECTION 2: FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

CJC shall provide Recipient, and Recipient shall accept from CJC, a grant (the “Grant”) in an 
aggregate amount not to exceed the Grant Amount. 

CJC’s obligations are subject to the receipt of the following items, in form and substance 
satisfactory to CJC and its Counsel: 

(1) This Agreement duly signed by an authorized officer of Recipient; and

(2) Such other certificates, documents, and information as CJC may reasonably require.

SECTION 3: DISBURSEMENT 

A. Disbursement. Upon execution of this Agreement and satisfaction of all conditions precedent,
CJC shall disburse Grant funds to Recipient in two equal installments of $119,657.00 each, the
first installment by October  5, 2024, and the second installment by March 31, 2025.

B. Conditions to Disbursements. CJC has no obligation to disburse Grant funds unless:

(1) CJC has sufficient funds currently available for this Agreement; and

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E Polk County Contract No. 24-147



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 2 of 15 

 (2) CJC has received appropriations, limitations, allotments or other expenditure authority 
sufficient to allow CJC, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to make 
payment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, CJC’s determination not to 
disburse funds due to lack of appropriations, allotments, or expenditure authority will not 
constitute an Event of Default. 

SECTION 4: USE OF GRANT 

As more particularly described in Exhibit A, Recipient will use the Grant to fund Behavioral Health 
Deflection programs (the “Project”). Recipient may only use Grant funds to cover reasonable and 
necessary Project costs incurred by Recipient during the period beginning July 1, 2024, and ending 
on the Completion Deadline, and that are allocable thereto and that are not excluded by CJC as 
set forth in the Grant Administration Guide published by CJC (“Eligible Costs”). Recipient must 
expend the entire Grant Amount on Eligible Costs. Such expenditure must occur no later than the 
Completion Deadline. 

SECTION 5: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF RECIPIENT 

Recipient represents and warrants to CJC as follows: 

A. Organization and Authority. 

 (1) Recipient is validly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Oregon. 

 (2) Recipient has all necessary right, power and authority under its organizational documents 
and applicable Oregon law to execute and deliver this Agreement and incur and perform 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

 (3) This Agreement has been authorized by an ordinance, order or resolution of Recipient’s 
governing body if required by its organizational documents or applicable law. 

 (4) This Agreement has been duly executed by Recipient, and when executed by CJC, is legal, 
valid and binding, and enforceable in accordance with this Agreement’s terms. 

B. Full Disclosure. Recipient has disclosed in writing to CJC all facts that materially adversely 
affect the Grant, or the ability of Recipient to perform all obligations required by this Agreement. 
Recipient has made no false statements of fact, nor omitted information necessary to prevent 
any statements from being misleading. The information contained in this Agreement, including 
Exhibit A, is true and accurate in all respects. 

C. Pending Litigation. Recipient has disclosed in writing to CJC all proceedings pending (or to the 
knowledge of Recipient, threatened) against or affecting Recipient, in any court or before any 
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, that, if adversely determined, would 
materially adversely affect the Grant or the ability of Recipient to perform all obligations 
required by this Agreement. 

SECTION 6: COVENANTS OF RECIPIENT 

Recipient covenants as follows: 

A. Notice of Adverse Change. Recipient shall promptly notify CJC of any adverse change in the 
activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of Recipient related to the ability of 
Recipient to perform all obligations required by this Agreement. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 3 of 15 

B. Compliance with Laws. 

(1) Recipient will comply with the requirements of all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
rules, regulations, and orders of any governmental authority, except to the extent an order 
of a governmental authority is contested in good faith and by proper proceedings.  

(2) Recipient is responsible for all federal or state tax laws applicable to its implementation 
of the Project and its use of the Grant or compensation or payments paid with the Grant. 

C. Worker’s Compensation Insurance. All employers, including Recipient, that employ subject 
workers who provide services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and 
provide the required Workers’ Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt 
under ORS 656.126. Employer’s liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than 
$500,000 must be included. Recipient shall ensure that each of its subgrantees and 
subrecipients complies with these requirements. 

D. Return of Unexpended Grant Funds. Recipient must return to CJC any Grant funds not 
expended by the Completion Deadline. 

E. Financial Records. Recipient will cooperate with CJC to provide all necessary financial 
information and records to comply with reporting required in Exhibit A. Recipient will keep 
proper books of account and records on all activities associated with the Grant, including, but 
not limited to, invoices, cancelled checks, payroll records, instruments, agreements and other 
supporting financial records documenting the use of the Grant. Recipient will maintain these 
books of account and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Recipient will retain these books of account and records until six years after the Completion 
Deadline or the date that all disputes, if any, arising under this Agreement have been resolved, 
whichever is later. 

F. Inspection. Recipient shall permit CJC, and any party designated by CJC, the Oregon Secretary 
of State’s Office, and their duly authorized representatives, at any reasonable time, to inspect 
and make copies of any accounts, books and records related to the administration of this 
Agreement. Recipient shall supply any Agreement-related information as CJC may reasonably 
require, with the exception of materials protected by attorney-client privilege or the attorney 
work product doctrine. Further, Recipient shall neither supply, nor permit inspection of, (1) any 
information protected by HIPAA, ORS 192.553, or related regulations or rules, or (2) the 
personnel files of Recipient’s employees, absent appropriate confidentiality protections, 
including exemption from disclosure under the Public Records Law, ORS ch. 192.  

G.  Notice of Event of Default. Recipient shall give CJC prompt written notice of any Event of 
Default, or any circumstance that with notice or the lapse of time, or both, may become an 
Event of Default, as soon as Recipient becomes aware of its existence or reasonably believes 
an Event of Default is likely. 

H. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements. 

(1) Subagreements. Recipient may enter into agreements with subgrantees and 
subrecipients (“Subagreements”) for implementation of portions of the Project. 
Recipient shall notify CJC of each Subagreement and provide CJC with a copy of a 
Subagreement upon request by CJC. Any material breach of a term or condition of a 
Subagreement relating to Grant Funds provided under this Agreement must be reported 
by Recipient to CJC within ten (10) days of its discovery.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 4 of 15 

(2) Subagreement indemnity; insurance.  

Each Recipient Subagreement shall require each other party to such 
Subagreement, that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, or 
a unit of state government as defined in ORS 174.111, to indemnify, defend, save 
and hold harmless the CJC and its officers, employees and agents from and 
against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 
30.260, caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of the other party to the Subagreement or any of such 
party’s officers, agents, employees or contractors (“Claims”). It is the specific 
intention of the Parties that CJC shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising 
solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the CJC, be indemnified by 
the other party to the Subagreement from and against any and all Claims.  

Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither the other party to such 
Subagreement nor any attorney engaged by such party shall defend a Claim in the name 
of the State of Oregon or an agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal 
representative of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written 
consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The State may, at any time at its election, 
assume its own defense and settlement in the event that it determines that the other 
party to such Subagreement is prohibited from defending State or that such other party 
is not adequately defending State’s interests, or that an important governmental 
principle is at issue or that it is in the best interests of State to do so. State reserves all 
rights to pursue claims it may have against the other party to such Subagreement if State 
elects to assume its own defense.  

Recipient shall require each other party to each of its Subagreements, that is not a unit 
of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, or a unit of state government as defined 
in ORS 174.111, to obtain and maintain insurance of the types and in the amounts 
provided in Exhibit B to this Agreement.  

(3) Procurements.  

i. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services for the 
Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, including all applicable 
provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules.  

ii. All procurement transactions, whether negotiated or competitively bid and without 
regard to dollar value, shall be conducted in a manner so as to provide maximum 
open and free competition. Justification must be provided to CJC for any non-
competitive or sole-source procurement. Justification should include a description 
of the equipment, materials or services procured, an explanation of why it was 
necessary to procure noncompetitively, time constraints and any other pertinent 
information. All sole source procurements in excess of $100,000 must receive prior 
written approval from CJC in addition to any other approvals required by law 
applicable to Recipient. Intergovernmental agreements between units of government 
are excluded from this requirement to obtain CJC approval of sole source 
procurements.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 5 of 15 

iii. Recipient shall be alert to organizational conflicts of interest or non-competitive 
practices among vendors that may restrict or eliminate competition or otherwise 
restrain trade. A vendor that develops or drafts specifications, requirements, 
statements of work, or Requests for Proposals (RFP) for a proposed procurement 
shall be excluded from bidding or submitting a proposal to compete for the award in 
such procurement. A request for a waiver of this restriction must be submitted to and 
approved by CJC in advance and in writing.  

SECTION 7: DEFAULT 

A. Recipient Default. Any of the following constitutes an “Event of Default” of Recipient: 

(1) Misleading Statement. Any materially false or misleading representation is made by 
Recipient or a person authorized to speak on its behalf, in this Agreement or in any 
document provided by Recipient related to this Grant. 

(2) Failure to Perform. Recipient fails to perform, observe or discharge any of its covenants, 
agreements, or obligations under this Agreement, other than those referred to in 
subsection A of this section, and that failure continues for a period of 30 calendar days 
after written notice specifying such failure is given to Recipient by CJC. CJC may agree in 
writing to an extension of time if it determines Recipient instituted and has diligently 
pursued corrective action. Acts or omissions of subgrantees shall not constitute an Event 
of Default unless ratified or knowingly induced by Recipient. 

B. CJC Default. CJC will be in default under this Agreement if it fails to perform, observe or 
discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or obligations under this Agreement. 

SECTION 8: REMEDIES 

A. CJC Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, CJC may pursue any remedies 
available under this Agreement, at law or in equity. Such remedies include, but are not limited 
to, termination of CJC’s obligations to make the Grant or further disbursements, return of all or 
a portion of the Grant Amount, payment of interest earned on the Grant Amount, and 
declaration of ineligibility for the receipt of future awards from CJC. If, because of an Event of 
Default, CJC demands return of all or a portion of the Grant Amount or payment of interest 
earned on the Grant Amount, Recipient shall pay the amount upon CJC’s demand.  

CJC may also recover all or a portion of any amount due from Recipient by deducting that 
amount from any payment due to Recipient from the State of Oregon under any other contract 
or agreement, present or future, unless prohibited by state or federal law.  

CJC reserves the right to turn over any unpaid debt under this Section 8 to the Oregon 
Department of Revenue or a collection agency and may publicly report any delinquency or 
default. These remedies are cumulative and not exclusive of any other remedies provided by 
law. 

B. Recipient Remedies. In the event of default by CJC, Recipient’s sole remedy will be for 
disbursement of Grant funds for Eligible Costs of the Project, not to exceed the total Grant 
Amount, less any claims CJC has against Recipient. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 6 of 15 

SECTION 9: TERMINATION  

A. Mutual Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent 
of the parties. 

B. Termination by CJC. In addition to terminating this Agreement upon an Event of Default as 
provided in Section 8, CJC may terminate this Agreement with notice to Recipient under any of 
the following circumstances: 

(1) If CJC anticipates a shortfall in applicable revenues or CJC fails to receive sufficient 
funding, appropriations or other expenditure authorizations to allow CJC, in its reasonable 
discretion, to continue making payments under this Agreement. 

(2) There is a change in federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines so that the uses 
of the Grant are no longer eligible for funding. 

C. Termination by Recipient. Recipient may terminate this Agreement with notice to CJC under 
any of the following circumstances: 

(1) After conferring with CJC, Recipient has determined that the requisite local funding to 
continue the Project is unavailable to Recipient or Recipient is unable to continue 
implementation of the Project as a result of circumstances not reasonably anticipated by 
Recipient at the time it executed this Agreement and that are beyond Recipient’s 
reasonable control. 

(2) There is a change in federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines so that the uses 
of the Grant are no longer eligible for funding. 

SECTION 10: MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Contribution.  

(1) If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort 
as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (“Third Party Claim”) against CJC or Recipient 
relating to this Agreement or the Project and with respect to which the other Party may 
have liability, the notified Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third 
Party Claim and deliver to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal 
pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in 
the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its 
own choosing. Receipt by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and 
meaningful opportunity for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions 
precedent to that Party’s contribution obligation with respect to the Third Party Claim.  

(2) With respect to a Third Party Claim for which CJC is jointly liable with Recipient (or would 
be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), CJC shall contribute to the amount of expenses 
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually 
and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the CJC on the one hand and of Recipient on 
the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable 
considerations. The relative fault of CJC on the one hand and of Recipient on the other 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 7 of 15 

hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative 
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the 
circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. 
CJC’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have 
been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 
30.300, if CJC had sole liability in the proceeding.  

(3) With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with CJC (or would 
be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of expenses 
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by CJC in such proportion as is appropriate to 
reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of CJC on the other hand in 
connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative 
fault of Recipient on the one hand and of CJC on the other hand shall be determined by 
reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Recipient’s contribution amount in 
any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, 
including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the 
proceeding. 

B. No Implied Waiver. No failure or delay on the part of CJC to exercise any right, power, or 
privilege under this Agreement will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any single or partial 
exercise of any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other such right, power, or privilege. 

C. Choice of Law; Designation of Forum; Federal Forum. The laws of the State of Oregon (without 
giving effect to its conflicts of law principles) govern all matters arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, its validity, interpretation, construction, performance, 
and enforcement. 

 Any party bringing a legal action or proceeding against any other party arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement shall bring the legal action or proceeding in the Circuit Court of the State of 
Oregon for Marion County (unless Oregon law requires that it be brought and conducted in 
another county). Each party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court, waives 
any objection to venue, and waives any claim that such forum is an inconvenient forum. 

 Notwithstanding the prior paragraph, if a claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it must 
be brought and adjudicated solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for 
the District of Oregon. This paragraph applies to a claim brought against the State of Oregon 
only to the extent Congress has appropriately abrogated the State of Oregon’s sovereign 
immunity and is not consent by the State of Oregon to be sued in federal court. This paragraph 
is also not a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense or immunity, including but 
not limited to sovereign immunity and immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the 
Constitution of the United States. 

D. Notices and Communication. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any 
communication between the parties or notices required or permitted must be given in writing 
by personal delivery, email, or by mailing the same, postage prepaid, to Recipient or CJC at the 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 8 of 15 

addresses listed in Exhibit A, or to such other persons or addresses that either party may 
subsequently indicate pursuant to this Section. 

 Any communication or notice by personal delivery will be deemed effective when actually 
delivered to the addressee. Any communication or notice so addressed and mailed will be 
deemed to be received and effective five (5) days after mailing. Any communication or notice 
given by email becomes effective 1) upon the sender’s receipt of confirmation generated by the 
recipient’s email system that the notice has been received by the recipient’s email system or 
2) the recipient’s confirmation of receipt, whichever is earlier. Notwithstanding this provision, 
the following notices may not be given by email: notice of default or notice of termination. 

E. Amendments. This Agreement may not be altered, modified, supplemented, or amended in any 
manner except by written instrument signed by both parties. 

F. Work Product. To the extent it has the necessary rights, Recipient hereby grants to CJC a non-
exclusive, irrevocable, perpetual, royalty-free, license to use, reproduce, prepare derivative 
works based upon, distribute copies of, perform and display for governmental purposes, all 
documents, reports and works of authorship created, produced or obtained as part of or in 
connection with the Project (“Work Product”). Recipient shall deliver copies of Work Product 
to CJC upon request. In addition, if applicable law requires that CJC own such intellectual 
property, then Recipient shall execute such further documents and instruments as CJC may 
reasonably request in order to assign ownership in the intellectual property to CJC. 

G. Independent Contractor. Recipient shall implement the Project as an independent contractor 
and not as an agent or employee of CJC. Recipient has no right or authority to incur or create 
any obligation for or legally bind CJC in any way. CJC cannot and will not control the means or 
manner by which Recipient implements the Project, except as specifically set forth in this 
Agreement. Recipient is responsible for determining the appropriate means and manner of 
implementing the Project. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that Recipient is not an “officer”, 
“employee”, or “agent” of CJC, as those terms are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make 
representations to third parties to the contrary. 

H. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement will be held invalid or unenforceable by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such holding will not invalidate or render unenforceable any other 
provision. 

I. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of CJC, 
Recipient, and their respective successors and assigns, except that Recipient may not assign 
or transfer its rights, obligations or any interest without the prior written consent of CJC. 

J. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in several counterparts, each of which is an 
original and all of which constitute one and the same instrument. 

K. Integration. This Agreement (including all exhibits, schedules or attachments) constitutes the 
entire agreement between the parties on the subject matter. There are no unspecified 
understandings, agreements or representations, oral or written, regarding this Agreement. 

L. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. CJC and Recipient are the only parties to this Agreement and are 
the only parties entitled to enforce the terms of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement gives 
or provides, or is intended to give or provide, to third persons any benefit or right not held by or 
made generally available to the public, whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, unless such 
third persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 9 of 15 

beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CJC acknowledges, 
agrees, and intends that Recipient will expend the Grant consistent with the Project. 

M. Survival. The following provisions, including this one, survive expiration or termination of this 
Agreement: Sections 6.D through 6.F, 7, 8, 10.A, 10.C, 10.D, and 10.O.  

N. Time is of the Essence. The parties agree that time is of the essence under this Agreement. 

O. Public Records. CJC’s obligations under this Agreement are subject to the Oregon Public 
Records Laws. 

 

The signatures of the parties follow on the next page. 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 10 of 15 

Recipient, by its signature below, acknowledges that it has read this Agreement, understands it, 
and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

 

 

 

STATE OF OREGON 
acting by and through its 

Criminal Justice Commission 
 

POLK COUNTY 

By:   By:  
 Ken Sanchagrin, Executive Director    

Date:   Date:  
 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Sufficiency in accordance with ORS 291.047: 

Approved by email dated 5/9/24  
Samuel B. Zeigler, Senior Assistant Attorney General  
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 11 of 15 

EXHIBIT A: 
CONTACT INFORMATION, PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

Contact Information: 

CJC Recipient 
State of Oregon, acting by and through 
its Criminal Justice Commission  

Polk County 
820 SW Church St., Ste. 100 
Dallas, OR 97338 

Grant Administrator: Kaysea Beck Contact: Jodi Merritt 

Telephone: (503) 602-0640 Telephone: (541) 282-4457 

Email: kaysea.beck@cjc.oregon.gov Email: merritt.jodi@co.polk.or.us 

 

Project Description: 

Pursuant to House Bill 4002 (2024), the Oregon Behavioral Health Deflection Program supports 
Oregon’s federally recognized tribal governments and counties in the development and operation 
of “deflection programs,” defined as a collaborative program between law enforcement agencies 
and behavioral health entities that assist individuals who may have substance use disorder, 
another behavioral health disorder or co-occurring disorders, to create community-based 
pathways to treatment, recovery support services, housing, case management or other services.  

The purposes of CJC’s Behavioral Health Deflection Program include: 

• Addressing the need for more deflection programs to assist individuals whose behavioral 
health conditions, including substance use disorder, lead to interactions with law 
enforcement, incarceration, conviction and other engagement with the criminal justice 
system; and 

• Tracking and reporting data concerning deflection program outcomes in order to determine 
the best practices for deflection programs in Oregon. 

 

The Grant has been awarded as an operational grant and requires the Recipient to: 

• Have a program coordinator responsible for the duties outlined in HB 4002, Section 76(5)(b); 

• Involve the partners described in HB 4002, Section 76(4)(c); and 

• Comply with the CJC’s data tracking and reporting requirements. 

 

Recipient shall use Grant funds to support the following program(s), its adherence to the 
requirements set forth in HB 4002, and its efforts toward the goals stated above: Deflection 
program following an officer intervention model.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 12 of 15 

Project Period: 

Start Date: July 1, 2024 

End Date: June 30, 2025 

 

Reporting Requirements: 

Schedule 

Recipient must submit to CJC quarterly expenditure reports, beginning October 25, 2024, until the 
earlier of thirty (30) days after Grant funds are fully expended or thirty (30) days after the 
Completion Date. 

Recipient must submit to CJC’s research partners data reports on a monthly, rolling basis, 
beginning no earlier than September 1, 2024, until the earlier of thirty (30) days after Grant funds 
are fully expended or thirty (30) days after the Completion Date. 

Recipient must submit to CJC semi-annual reports on January 25 and July 25 of each year of the 
Project Period. 

Recipient must receive prior approval from CJC to submit any required report after its due date. 

 

Report Contents 

Required reports must be submitted through CJC’s grant administration system and the Research 
Electronic Data Capture (REDCap) data collection portal, respectively, and contain all the 
requested information. 

1. CJC Quarterly Expenditure Report (https://cjc-grants.smapply.io) 

a. Grant Funds spent during the prior calendar quarter, with brief description; and 

b. Any quarterly information on the Project as CJC may reasonably request. 

 

2. CJC Semi-Annual Progress Report (https://cjc-grants.smapply.io) 

a. In a narrative fashion, Recipient’s progress in meeting the Project’s objectives during the 
six-month period preceding the report date, and remedial actions necessary if those 
objectives have not been met in any respect. 

 

3. REDCap Monthly Data Report 

a. Deidentified data on program participants enrolled, engaged, or served during the prior 
calendar month; and 

b. Any monthly information on the Project as CJC may reasonably request. 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E

https://cjc-grants.smapply.io/
https://cjc-grants.smapply.io/


CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 13 of 15 

EXHIBIT B: 
SUBAGREEMENT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  

Recipient shall require each of its first-tier contractors that are not units of local government as 
defined in ORS 190.003 (each a “Contractor”) to obtain, at the Contractor’s expense, the insurance 
specified in this Exhibit B before performing under this Agreement and to maintain it in full force 
and at the Contractor’s own expense throughout the duration of this Agreement, as required by 
any extended reporting period or continuous claims made coverage requirements, and all warranty 
periods that apply. Contractors shall obtain the following insurance from insurance companies or 
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State 
of Oregon and that are acceptable to CJC. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with 
any other insurance and self-insurance, with the exception of Professional Liability and Workers’ 
Compensation. Contractors shall pay for all deductibles, self-insured retention and self-insurance, 
if any. Recipient shall require and ensure that each of its Contractors complies with these 
requirements and maintains insurance policies with responsible insurers, insuring against liability, 
in the coverages and amounts identified below. 

 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION & EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY: 

All employers, including Contractors, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, 
shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide workers' compensation insurance coverage for those 
workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). Recipient 
shall require and ensure that each of its Contractors complies with these requirements. If a 
Contractor is a subject employer, as defined in ORS 656.023, the Contractor shall also obtain 
employers' liability insurance coverage with limits not less than $500,000 each accident. If the 
Contractor is an employer subject to any other state’s workers’ compensation law, Contactor shall 
provide workers’ compensation insurance coverage for its employees as required by applicable 
workers’ compensation laws including employers’ liability insurance coverage with limits not less 
than $500,000 and shall require and ensure that each of its out-of-state subcontractors complies 
with these requirements. 

As applicable, each Contractor shall obtain coverage to discharge all responsibilities and liabilities 
that arise out of or relate to the Jones Act with limits of no less than $5,000,000 and/or the 
Longshoremen’s and Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act.   

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY: 

 Required    Not required 

Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in a form and 
with coverage that are satisfactory to the State. This insurance shall include personal and 
advertising injury liability, products and completed operations, contractual liability coverage for 
the indemnity provided under this Agreement, and have no limitation of coverage to designated 
premises, project or operation. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of 
not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000. 

 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE: 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 14 of 15 

 Required    Not required 

Automobile Liability Insurance covering each Contractor’s business use including coverage for all 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 for 
bodily injury and property damage. This coverage may be written in combination with the 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability). Use of personal automobile liability insurance coverage may be acceptable 
if evidence that the policy includes a business use endorsement is provided.  

 

EXCESS/UMBRELLA INSURANCE: 

Umbrella insurance coverage in the sum of $2,000,000 shall be provided and will apply over all 
liability policies, without exception, including but not limited to Commercial General Liability, 
Automobile Liability, and Employers' Liability coverage. The amounts of insurance for the 
insurance required under this Agreement, including this Excess/Umbrella insurance requirement, 
may be met by the Contractor obtaining coverage for the limits specified under each type of 
required insurance or by any combination of underlying, excess and umbrella limits so long as the 
total amount of insurance is not less than the limits specified for each type of required insurance 
added to the limit for this excess/umbrella insurance requirement.  

 

ADDITIONAL INSURED:  

All liability insurance, except for Workers’ Compensation, Professional Liability, and Network 
Security and Privacy Liability (if applicable),  required under this Agreement must include an 
additional insured endorsement specifying the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents 
as Additional Insureds, including additional insured status with respect to liability arising out of 
ongoing operations and completed operations, but only with respect to a Contractor's activities to 
be performed under this Agreement. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with any 
other insurance and self-insurance. The Additional Insured endorsement with respect to liability 
arising out of your ongoing operations must be on ISO Form CG 20 10 07 04 or equivalent and the 
Additional Insured endorsement with respect to completed operations must be on ISO form CG 20 
37 07 04 or equivalent. 

 

WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  

Each Contractor shall waive rights of subrogation which the Contractor or any insurer of the 
Contractor may acquire against the CJC or State of Oregon by virtue of the payment of any loss. 
Each Contractor will obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 
subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the CJC has received a waiver 
of subrogation endorsement from the Contractor or the Contractor’s insurer(s). 

 

CONTINUOUS CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE:  

If any of the required liability insurance is on a claims made basis and does not include an extended 
reporting period of at least 24 months, then the Contractor shall maintain continuous claims made 
liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous claims made coverage is on or 
before the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of: 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



CJC Behavioral Health Deflection Program Page 15 of 15 

 

(i) The Contractor’s completion and CJC’s acceptance of all Services required under the 
Agreement, or  

(i) CJC or Recipient termination of this Agreement, or 

(ii) The expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement. 

 

CERTIFICATE(S) AND PROOF OF INSURANCE:  

Upon request, each Contractor shall provide to CJC Certificate(s) of Insurance for all required 
insurance before delivering any Goods and performing any Services required under this Agreement. 
The Certificate(s) shall list the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as a Certificate 
holder and as an endorsed Additional Insured. The Certificate(s) shall also include all required 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this 
Agreement. If excess/umbrella insurance is used to meet the minimum insurance requirement, 
the Certificate of Insurance must include a list of all policies that fall under the excess/umbrella 
insurance. As proof of insurance CJC has the right to request copies of insurance policies and 
endorsements relating to the insurance requirements in this Agreement. 

 

NOTICE OF CHANGE OR CANCELLATION: 

Each Contractor or its insurer must provide at least 30 days’ written notice to CJC before 
cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of 
the required insurance coverage(s). 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW: 

Recipient agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by CJC under this Agreement and to 
provide updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Recipient and CJC. 

 

STATE ACCEPTANCE: 

All insurance providers are subject to CJC acceptance. If requested by CJC, Recipient shall provide 
complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related 
insurance documents to CJC’s representatives responsible for verification of the insurance 
coverages required under this Exhibit B. 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8026F277-EA55-4DD3-8CC4-46D1EA18064E



Porr CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

POLK COUNTY
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338
(s03) 623-9237

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Hannah Brickner, Associate Planner
Polk County Community Development

September 5,2024

Ratifu the Hearings Officer's Decision on an Appeal; Planning File FORD 23'01

September llr2024 Consent Agenda
ISSUE:

Ratiff the Hearings Officers final local decision on the appeal of Polk County Planning File FORD
23-01

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners ratify the Hearings Officer's final local
decision affirming, with amended conditions, the Planning Director's approval of Polk County
Planning File FORD 23-01.

BACKGROUND:

On October 30,2023,the applicant submitted a land use application to establish a dwelling--
(FORD 23-01)'within the F-arm/Forest (F/F) ZoningDistrict under the small tract "template"
dwelling criteiia. The application also addresses the general and fire siting standards criteria,
which iirequired for awbnings in the F/F zone. The application was deemed complete.ol A.plil
26,2024. Tire Planning Direclor found that the applicant met the applicable rev^iew and decision
criieria and approved tle application, subject to nine (9) conditions. On June 28, 2024,th:_
Planning Direitor's decisi6ri was mailed io surrounding property owners pursuant to PCZO
111.240(4).

On July 10,2024,the appellant filed a timely appeal for the Planning Director's decision. The
appealidentified conceins primarily related io ihe proximity and impact.of the p.roposed

dwelling location on the nelghboring property to the north/west, whic! the appellant owns.
Specifiially, the appellant identified-conderns about the compliance of the propo^sed dwelling.
location witir ttte general and fire siting standards, the risk of fire, the location of the fuel breaks,

setbacks of the dwelling from the closest neighboring property, and the impact of the driveway
extension on forestland.

On July 16,2024 the Polk County Board of Commissioners directed staff to set the matter for a
hearin! before the Polk County Hearings Officer, pursuant to PCZO I I 1.280. A duly noticed
public-hearing before the Heaiings Officer was conducted on Auggq! 13,2024..An qpportunity
was provided-for the Appellant, Applicant, and members of the public.to subnit oral and written
testimony at the hearing. The Heaiings Officer issued a final local decision affrrming 4e_
PlanningDirectors declsion on Auguit 30,2024, but modified Conditions ofApproval No. 

-1 
and

4. The Polk County Board of Commissioners shall ratify the final local decision issued by the
Hearings Officer, pursuant toPCZO I I L280.

IF:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNINC\ForesI-D\2023\FORD23-01\Appeal\BOC Consent Memo (Ratification) FORD 23-01



Upon adoption, Order Number 24-09 would become effective 2l days after the mailing of the

decision.

DISCUSSION / TERNATIVES

I

2

Adopt Order Number 24-09 ratifying the Hearings pf!ge19 final local decision d!$ing'
with modifications, the Planning Directors approval of Polk County Planning Division
file FORD 23-0L; or

Other.

F'ISCAL IMPACTS:

No fiscal impacts to the County have been identified.

ATT

Order Number 24-09

Exhibit A: Hearings Officer's Decision

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\ForCst-D9023\FORD23-01\Appeal\BOC Consent Memo (Ratification) FORD 23-01 1



BEFORE THE BOARD OF'COMMISSIONERS
FOR THE COUNTY OF POLK, STATE OF OREGON

8S, R5W,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

ORDER NO. 24-09

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2024 the Polk County Planning Director approved. flanling
Division application'FORD 23-0i,with conditions, authorizing a small tract ootemplate" dwelling
in the Farm/Forest zone; and

WHEREAS, a timely appeal was submitted on July 10, 2024; and

WHEREAS, on July 16,2024 the Polk County Board of Commissioners directed staff to

set the matter for a hearing Lefore the Polk County Hearings Offtcer, pursuant to PCZO 1 1 1.280;

and

WHEREAS, the Polk County Hearings Officer conducted a duly noticed public hearing
on August 13,2024 where an opportunity was provided for Appellants, Applicants and members

of the public to submit oral and written testimony; and

WHEREAS, the Hearings Officer issued a final local decision affirming the Planning
Directors decision with amended conditions on August 30,2024; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to PCZO 111.280, the Board of Commissioners shall ratiff the
final local decision issued by the Hearings Officer; now therefore,

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

Sec. l. That Polk County Board of Commissioners ratiff the Hearings Officer's
final local decision.

Sec. 2. An emergency is declared, and the provisions of this order become
effective upon its adoption.

Dated this 11th day of September,2024 at Dallas, Oregon.

Order 24-09



Approved as to form:

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Craig Pope, Chair

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Recording Secretary:

2Order 24-09



I. SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS

A. BACKGROUND

This matter arose on the application of John Steven Walker ("Applicant") to establish a dwelling on the

subject property utilizing the "small tract template_{ye,]li1gt' criieria for the Farm Forest (F/F) Zoning
Dislrict'found in Polk C6unty Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) 13S.080(B)Q). ]he_sybject property contains

approximately 23.1 acres and is localed within the Farmfforest (F/F).Zoning District- Dwellin-gs within
ttr.i fn 

"rn""ur" 
also subject to review and approval of the "general siting standards" and "fire.siting

standards" for the locatiori of the proposed Owdliing. The Appli-ant's plot_plan is included as Attachment
A-1. AttachmentA-2 is a map cr6ated by Polk Corlnty Cominunity Develbpment Staff ("County Staff')
intended to depict the subject property's location and surrounding area.

The application was submitted on October 30,2023. On_November 22,2023, Cotllty_St1{ls.ent a Letter
of Inidmplete to the Applicant. The application was deemed. complete. on April 26, 2024, whel !h9
Applicant^ indicated in writing that none oTthe missing info_rmationyo_u^td!. prorided. On June 28,2024,
th'i'Polk County Planning Sirector approved plann-ing file FORD 23-01 with nine.(9).conditions of
approval and sent notice-of the deciiibn to_surroundihg.area property owners..A timely {pPeal was

sirbmitted on July 10,2024.The appeal includes concerns about the n19po9eO dwelling's compliance with
the general and"fire siting standaids, including the proposed. dwelling's compliance with fuel break

,"quTr.*.nts, the risk of frre, and minimizing lbe use-of forestlands. On July 16' 2024 the !o!]< County
Boird of Commissioners directed County SAff to set the matter for a hearing before the.Polk.Cognty
Hearings Officer, pursuant to PCZO I I 1.2S0. The Hearings Officer's decision will constitute the final
County decision subject to ratification by the Board of Commissioners.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Property Size: 23.1 aues

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ZONING DESIGNATIONS:

EXHIBIT A

BEFORE THE PLANNING DIVISION
FOR POLK COUNTY' OREGON

In the Matter of the Application of: F'ile No: FORD 23-01

JOHN STEVEN WALKER HEARINGS OFFICER'S DECISION

Area Comprehensive Plan
Desienation

Zoning Designation

Subject Property Farm/Forest Farm/Forest (F/F)

Property North Agriculture and Farm/Forest Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) and
Farm/Forest (F/F)

Property East Farm/Forest Farm/Forest (F/F)

Prooertv South Farm/Forest Farm/Forest (F/F)

Property West Farm/Forest Farm/Forest G/F)

FORD 23-01 - In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision
Page I of l8

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: The subject property is located at 13310 Monmogth H*y, M^o^nmo*uth,

@S,R5w,Sectibn28,TaxLots804and8l8)'Accordingtothe2024Polk
Cou-nty Assessor's Records, the subject property is currently vacant of any structures. There are no



contiguous lots or parcels under common ownership; therefore, the Hearings Officer finds that the subject
property constitutes the subject tract.

The subject property was lawfully created pursuant to Polk County Subdivisi-?n and Partition Ordinance
(pCSOigl.qSO(t)G), as evidenied by a Partition Ppl_(C.o.u.nty Sqryey 5026).recorded in Polk County
book of RecorA t'iZ,-p age 2467, datei Augu st 20, 1977 . This partition created the subject property as a

remainder parcel. This rJmainder parcel wis further reconfigurbd three times.

The first reconfiguration is evidenced by a Memorandum of Land Sale Contract recorded in Book of
necord l23,PagZ 439, dated March 20,i978. This deed transferr-ed theportion of the.remailder parcel

that is currently"identified as Tax Lot 8i0 of T8S, R5W, Section 28 to Bribe C. Caldwell and Dorottty Y.
Caldwetl, who were the owners of the neighboring property to the south at the time, as e-videnced by
Book of Record 106, Page 167, dated JunE 17,1977. As of March 20, 1978, when Tax Lot 810 was

transferred to the neighbo-ring pioperty owner, Polk County h_ad adopted partition standards, but had not
y.i uAopt"O propert! line idljusiment standards. County. Staff reviewed Polk County Community
b.u"fopl-rnt'recbrdi and did not find any documents thaf indicate thatapartition created Tax Lot 810

as a separate legal parcel. Based on this evidence, jt app.eqr.s that this transfer was intended as a property
line adjustmenibetween the subject property and the neighboring property to the south.

The second reconfiguration is evidenced by findings in Land Use Determination (L!P) 0^a:?L,yfi:lt
indicates that the p6rtion of the remaindei parceliurrently identified as Tax Lot 815 of T8S, R!W'
S..tion 28 was combined with the neighboring property curently identified as Tax Lot 812 of T8S, R5ry,
Section 28 to create one legal parcel, iursuant-to a Memorandum of Land Sale Contract recorded in Book
of Record l4l, Page 1607,dated August 7,1979.

The third reconfiguration that brought the subject property to its current configulajion is evid_enced by^a

Memorandum of"Agreement recordld in Polk-Couhty nodk of Record 191, Page 1580, dated January .10,
1986. This deed traisferred approximately nine (9) acres of a contiguous property to John S. and Yukiko
Walker, who were the owners'of the subject property at the time of the conveya.nce, as evidenc-ed.by a

Memorandum of Land Sale Contract re6orded ih p6tt County Book of Record 143, Page 430, dated

S.pi.-b., 15,lg79.This conveyance exercised ?_ploperty line. adjustmert approved pursuant to Special

Exieption (SE) 36-25. County Siaff reviewed Polli Cqq{y^9"_rymunity Development records and found
two @) subsequent land use decisions, CU 86-36 and SE 87-ll, that_refer to the subject property as an

appriximately'23-acreparcel, consisting of what is currentlyjdentified on the Assessor's Map as Tax Lot
Sb4 and Tax Lot 818 (formerly a part of Tax Lot 814) of T8S, R5W, Section 28.

The subject property is curently described in a Bargain and Sale deed recorded in Polk County Clerk
Documdnt ZOOt'-Oi+ql , dated September 25,2001, {nd aBargain and Sale_ deed recorded in Polk County
Clerk Document2024-00qeAS,dated June 21,2024. County Staff acknowledges that the two (2) tax lots

thai make up the subject pa.cel were not under common ownership for a.p-eriod of time prior to this

decision, duiing whicL time the current property owner still had an interest in both.portions, due t9 what
appears to be i mistake in the legal dglcriptioh andlor an estate. planning error. Nevertteless, CounjY
Siiff determined and the Hearinfs Officei concurs that the subject property is curently in its lawful
configuration.

Based on a review of the National Wetland Inventory (NWI) maps, Airlie North Quadrangle, there are

not any wetlands located on the subject property. According to the_|._{qlt_Fn"rgency Management
Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance nate tvt-ap (flnVl panel.number 41053C0400F, dated December 19,

ZOIO, ituj subjeci property is not located within a Spe-cial Flood Hazard Area.(SFHA). According to the

Polk bounty Significdnt [iesource Areas (SRA) Map, there are no inv_entoried significant resources located

on the subji:ct p.op..ty. There are no inventoried historic sites or Willamette River Greenway areas on

the subject property.

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page2ofl8
2



Table 1:
Conserva

Soil characteristics of the subject
tion Service (NRCS)

as identified in the Natural Resources
utilizing the Polk County

Geographic Information System

I Disclaimer: Information is based on NRCS soil information & Polk County Tax Assessment data. This information is

provided for land use planning purposes only, Polk County il not responsible for Taq gfoJs, omissions, misuse, or

misinterpretation, Percent and iothl ialculatiods are based on staff measurernents using the Polk County GIS.

FORD 23-01 - In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision
Page3ofl8

J

Soil Type Soil Name Soil
Class

High
Value?

Forest
Productivity

Acres

368 Jory silty clay loam,20 to 30
percent slopes

IVE Yes t72 6.21

378 Jory silty clay loam, 30 to 50
percent slopes

VIE No 172 3.78

60c Rickreall silty clay loam, 3 to
l2 percent slopes

VIE No Unknown 2.82

36F; Jory silty clay loam, 20 to 30
percent slopes

IVE Yes 172 3.90

36D Jory silty clay loam, 12 to 20
nercent slopes

IIIE Yes 172 0.66

368 Jory silty clay loam,20 to 30
percent slopes

IVE Yes 172 l.4l

60D Rickreall silty clay loam,12
to 20 percent slopes

VIE No Unknown 0.93

60E Rickreall silty clay loam,20
to 50 oercent slopes

VIIE No Unknown 0.51

68D Suver silty clay loam, l2 to
20 percent slopes

IIIE No Unknown 0.49

378 Jory silty clay loam, 30 to 50
Dercent slopes

VIE No t72 0.01

8C Bellpine silty clay loam, 3 to
l2 percent slopes

IIIE Yes 172 2.t4



Services:

School:

Fire:

Police:

B.

Access The subject property has frontage along Monmouth Highway. The proposed

dwelling structures would access Monmouth Highway via a proposed driveway

located intirely on the subject property. Monmouth Highway is classified as a

Minor Arterial in the Polk County Transportation Systems Plan, Figure 3'

The subject property is within the area sgrved by Luckiamute Domestic Water

Cooperalive. Thi proposed dwelling would be served by an on-site septic system.

Central School District l3J

Polk County Fire District #l

Polk County Sheriff

COMMENTS RECEIVED

Prior to the public hearing the following comments were received:

Environmentar Hearth: 
Hfi:iT#1;"#1i:;H?f:'nffi;,t"#li::ff##1:;fi3"'""'
feasibility.

If home is being built, we would need to verify access and water

supply.

II. PUBLIC HEARING

A duly advertised public hearing was held on August 13,2024, at the Polk County Courthouse.

The Fiearings OffiCer called the meeting to order at the appointed hour. There were no objections

as to notice, jurisdiction, or conflicts of interest. County Staff recited the applicable review and

decision criteria and recommended approval. The Applicant appeared through his attorney,

Anthony James, and he spoke in favor of the application. The Appellants spoke against the

applicaiion and submitted written testimony into the record. No other public testimony was

reieived in favor or against the application. There was no request to keep the record open, or for a

continuance. The Hearings Officer thereupon declared the record closed and adjourned the

hearing. All of the testimony, evidence, and arguments are a part of the record and were considered

in this matter.

III. REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA

The authorizatlon for a small tract "template" dwelling within the F/F zone is provided under

PCZO Sections 138.070, 138.080(8)(3), 138.110, 138.120, and 138.140'

(A) PREDOMINANT USE TEST The siting of dwellinqs and certain other land uses

within the FarmlForest Zoning District are based on a determination of the
predominant use of a tract as either farm or forest land. A "tract" is defined as

bne (1) or more contiguous lots or parcel(s) under the same ownership.

Predominant use is defined as more than 50 percent of the area of the tract. Polk
County will review tax assessor recordso aerial photos, soils- ca_pability data' and
existing uses to determine on a case-by-case basis whether a tract was
predoliinantly used for farm or forest purposes as of January l, 1993. IPCZO
138.0701

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page 4 of l8

Polk County Fire
District No. l:

4



The subject property is approxim ately 23.l acres in size. Based. on County Staff s review of Polk
County'Cleri. t"'"ordr, thdre are no contiguous lots or parcels under common ownership' Therefore,

the H6arings Officei finds that the sibject prypqrty constitutes the e_ntire subject tracl. The

Applicant fiserts that the subject tract wis pr6dominintly in.tim_ber on January !, 1993. County

Silih reviewed the 1994 aerial image accessed through Polk County Geographic Information
System (GIS), which depicts nearly -att of the subject property plantgd. in timber on the date the

aerial photogiaph was t'aken. The-2022 aerial pfiotograph accessed through.Polk County GIS

rfto*riflut t6e iubject property continued to be primaiily used_for tjrybel production on the date

itte aerial photograph was'taki:n. The property descripti-on included in_the Applicant's narrative

rtut"r that the .r1;.ict property is currently used for timber production. C9u1ty Staff reviewed the

2024 Assesror's .""port for th6 subject property and noted that forest tax deferral was added to the

subject property in'2000 for Tax Lot 8b4 inO 2OOt for Tax Lot 818. Nevertheless, the 1994 aerial
pttdtog.';ph ,".i"r as evidence that the subject property was alreadyil fo19s{ use prior to when the

itrop.fty'b"gun receiving forest tax deferryt._Aaaitiorially, the NRCS soil data, found in Table I
'uUo'u", lndic"ates that a riajority (78.4%) of the soils found on the subject property are capable of
producing 172 cubic feet per icie per year of wood fiber, which is_ considered .productive forest

iuna. forErt productivity id unknouzn for the remaining 21.6% of soils onthe subject proprcrty. The

ft.u.ingr Oificer findJ that based on the information pro_vfd:4 Oy.the Applicant, the-aerial
photoglaphs of Polk County, the Assessor's report,.anil^NRCS soil data, it is reasonable to

boncttiae that the subject trait was predominantly-used for forest purposes as of Januaty l, 1993 '

The Hearings Officers finds the application complies with this criterion.

(B) Small Tract "Template" Dwelling A dwelling may be authorized on a tract that
meets the fotlowing criteriat IPCZO 138.080(BX3)l

(1) The tract is less than 60 acres in size; IPCZO 138.080(B)(3Xa)l

The subject tract contains approxim ately 23.1 acres. The Hearings Officer finds that the subject

tract is less than 60 acres in size.

The Hearings Officer finds the application complies with this criterion.

(2) The tract meets one of the following:

(a) The tract is composed of soils that are capa_ble of annually producing
more than 85 cu. ft. per acre of wood fiber if:

(i) All or part of at least lL other lots or parcels that existed on
January 1, 1993, are within a 160 acre square centered on the
center oftne subject tract. Ifthe tract abuts a road that existed as

of January lr 1993, the measurement may be made by creating-a
160-acre rectangle that is one mile long and one-quarter mile wide
centered on the center of the subject tract and aligned with the
road to the maximum extent possible; and

(ii) 
f"'"lifi: TJ":.f3J 3x"11l: 

*'d:T'i1,,"i1"il1#. 
l' #i1#3

138.080(B)(3XbXi)l

A soils capability analysis and 'otemplate" test are intended to determine the .averag.e forest
productivity atraLtof laird is capable of producing,and to determine_the {ensity of dwelling.l and

parcels surounding the subject irropertyihat existed on January_ 1,1993. Gre.ater soil capability is
'equivalent to morJrestrictive requirements for the number of lots.or parc.els and.dwellings !$t
need to have existed on January-I, 1993, and continue to exist today. This co_rrelation found in
State law is intended to permit residential development based upon the degree_of parcelization and

development that exists^in the area, and the tractts capability to produce merchantable timber.

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision
Page 5 of l8

5



The subject property is located at 13310 Monmouth Highway, Monmouth, Oregon (Assessment

tttup-iSt, nSW, Section 28, Tax Lots 804 a.nd !t!). !-ounty Staff reviewed a soil composition
r"p6tt foithe subject property, generated using Polk County's GIS tools and Natural Resource

C6nservation Seriice iNnCS) i"il data. A surimary of thid soils report is.provided in Table I
uUou" and full details of this'report are included inthe record. Based on this report, the forest

fioauciivity data reveal that78.4% (approximately l8.l.acres) of the subject qroperty is.captble
6iannuuttiproducing more than S5 iubic feet of wood fiber per acre, per year. Forest productivity
is unkno#ntor the relmaining approximately 2l.6Yo of the subject property. The Applicanthas not
p.uia.O additional data fo-r ihe soil typi:s with no.productivity data. Therefore, lyriry^lht'administrative review, County Staff det-eimined that the most stringent criteria found in PCZO
iiS.08Ofgl(3xbxi) shall be afplied with the conservative assumption that the subject property is
capable of-annualiy producinf more than 85 cubic feet of wood fiber per acre, per year'

The Applicant provided a report produced using _1993 tax assessment records from Po_lk-Co.unty's

GIS too^ls. Couirty Staff found, and the Hearings Officer concurs, it reasonable to conclude that tax
lots under r.purut" ownership are separate parcels fo1 t!9 purpose of applying the 

^template.test
criieria. The 'itemplate" test piovided by the Applicant indicirtes that on January I ,.1993 , excluding
the subject p.op.rty, there were at leait 13 otl\er tax lots under s.eparate ownership.within a 160

acre "tdmplit"'i rq,ia.., centered on the tract. This exceeds the minimum of eleven (l l) other lots

or parceljthat are^required to have been located within the 160 acre^"template" square on January

1,iig1. According tb the 1993 tax assessment records, at least 10_dwellings on lotsor parcels

within the 160 acrE "template" square existed on January 1,1993.-Co^unty_S^taffs review of the

Zni+pol1County Tax Assessors data confirmed that atleast three (3) of the. l0 dwe.llings gontinue
to exist today. However, in reviewing the application materials, it lPPears that this "lemplate'test
provided by'the Applicant depicts tiie subjdct tract as including Tax Lots.9l0, 918, and 804 of
T8S, R5W; Section'28, whic6 does not accurately account for the centroid of the.subject tract.

According io the Assessor's Map, the subject traci currently_consists of Tax Lot 804 and Tax Lot
gig. Corf,ty Stuff produced a report usin! Polk County G^^iS tools to evaluate the compliance of
the current iract (Tix Lot 804 and 818) with the "template" test criteria.

The template report produced by County Staff indicates that on January .1., l99.3,.excluding the

subject irroperty, there were 2b other tax lots under separate ownership within a 160 acre
;teirplate" iqru.", centered on the subject tract. This exceeds the minimum of eleven (ll) other

lots or parceli thatare required to have been located within the 160 acre-"template" square on

lanuary l, 1993. According to the 1993 tax assessment record,s, 17 dwellings on lotsor parcels

within'the 160 acre o'templ"ate" square existed on January 1,1993.,Co^ulty_Sjlffs review of the

2.024PolkCounty Tax Assessors data confirmed that at least three (3) of the l Tdwellings co1!t1y9

to exist today. Oirly dwellings and tax lots located outside of an urban growth boundary ruGB)
were counted to meet the above criteria.

Given that County Staff s review of these criteria is dependent on the size and configuration of the

subject tract as evaluated in this application,.County-Staff recommends a condition.o{ approval
thai would invalidate this dwellinj'approval if the iract is reconfigured prior to establishing the

dwelling.

The record contains sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the "template" test map and report
generated by County Staff, and based on Polk .Cou^n!y's Assessor's Records, the subject tract
ilould meetihe above-listed criteria in its current lawful-configuration. The Hearings Officer finds
that with this above-mentioned condition, the application complies with this criterion.

(3) The tract contains no dwellings on other lots or parcels that make up the
tract. lP CZO I 3 8.080(8)(3Xe)l

According to the 2024PolkCounty Assessor's records, the subject proqerty is currently vacant
of any dyvellings. As discussed eariier, the subject property constitutes the entire subject tract;
therefore the subject tract is vacant of any dwellings'

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page6ofl8
6



The Hearings Officer finds the application complies with this criterion.

(4) The tract is not subject to deed restrictions established under OAR 660-006-
0027(6) and Seciion 138.0S0(B)(2Xb) of this Ordinance. IPCZO
138.080(B)(3X01

Based on County Staffs review of the Polk County Commun_ity_D9v_glo^p11e^n^t ajr9Clerk records,

ttti trurt is not subject to deed restrictions established under OAR 660-006-0027(6) andPCZO
138.080(B)(2Xb).

The Hearings Officer finds the application complies with this criterion.

(5) Parcels 10 acres or less in size shall not be _required to submit a stocking
report prior to receiving a permit for the dwelling as authorized by this
subsection . lP CZO I 3 8.080(B)(lXg)l

The subject tract is approximately 23.I acres in size. Because the subject tract is greater than 10.0

urt"r in"rire, a condilion of approval would require that the owner of the parcel plant a sufficient
number of trees on the tract to d-emonstrate that the tract is reasonably expected to meet Department

oiForestry stocking requirements. The property owner shall submit a stocking survey report to the
poik Couirty Assessor for the Assessoi to veiify that the minimum stocking_requirements have

been met Uy ttre time required by the Oregon D6partment of Forestry Rules. If the.property does

not meet the minimum stockin! requireilents, the Assessor may ihen remov€ 
-the 

forest land

designation pursuant to ORS 32135E and impose additional tax pursuant to ORS 321 .372.

The Hearings Officer concurs with the above referenced condition and finds that with the

condition the application complies with this criterion.

(6) Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries shall not be used to 51tli$y
the etiginiUty requirements under subsections 138.080(BX3). IPCZO
138.080(B)(3Xh)l

Lots or parcels within a UGB were not used to satisfy the template dwelling requirements.

The Hearings Officer finds the application complies with this criterion.

(7) The lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was lawfully established;

lP czo I 3 8.080(B)(3Xi)l

As discussed above, the subject property was lawfully created pursuant to PCSO 91.950(lXb), as

evidenced by a Partition Plat recorded in Polk County Book of Record ll2, Page 2467, dated

August 20,1977 .This partition created the subject property as a remainder parcel. This remainder

parcel was further reconfigured three times, prior to when Polk County adopted property line

adjustment standards. The subject property is currently described in a Bargain and Sale deed

recorded in Polk County Clerk Document 2001-012491, dated September 25, 2001 and a Bargain

and Sale deed recorded in Polk County Clerk Document 2024-004665, dated June2l,2024.

The Hearings Officer finds the application complies with this criterion.

(8) Any property line adjustment to the lot or parcel complied with the
apf[c'anl-e pioperty line adjustment provisions in ORS 92,192:' IPCZO
138.080(B)(3Xi)l

(9) Any property line adjustment to the lot or parcel after January 1' 2019' did
not trave the- effect of qualifying the lot or parcel for a dwelling under this
sectionl and [PCZO I 38.080(B)(3Xk)]

As discussed above, County Staff reviewed Polk County Community Development Records and

Polk County Clerk Documents and found that the subject property was.reconfis\r1ed three.(3)
times: in l9-86 pursuant to Special Exception (SE) 86-25, which was exercised by a Memorandum

FORD 23-01 - In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page 7 of l8
7



of Agreement recorded in Polk County Book of Record 191, Page 158Q dated JanuaY J9: PgA;
in 19"78 pursuant to a Memorandum oiland Sale Contract recorded in Book of Record lZ3,Page
439, daied March 20, 1978; and in 1979 pursuant to a Memorandum of Land Sale Contract

recorded in Book of Record-141, Page 160i, dated August 7,1979. Polk_Cou.nty d!{_not allopt
piop"rty line adjustment standards uitil March 27, l9rl. Therefore, the Hearings Officer finds
ttrad property line adjustment standards were not applicable at the time of these property line

adiudtmints. Based o"n County Staff s review of Polk-County Community Development Records

un'J potf. County Clerk Recoids, there have not been any property line adjustments affecting the

subject property after January 1,2019.

The Hearings Officer finds the application complies with this criterion.

(10) If the lot or parcel on which the dwelling wi! be sited was-part of a tract on
January lr 2019, no dwelling existed on the tract on that date, and no
dwelling exists or has been approved on another lot or parcel that was part
of the tract. IPCZO 138.080(B)(3)0)l

Note: Prior to November 1r2023, a county may allow the establishment of a
single-family dwelling on a lot or parcel that was part of a tract on
January l,202l,iI:

1. No more than one other dwelling exists or has been approved on
another lot or parcel that was part ofthe tract; and

2. The lot or parcel qualifieso notwithstanding PCZO 138.080(BX3)0)
for a dwelling under PCZO 138.080(BX3).

County Staff reviewed Polk County Clerk and Polk County Assessor's records for the tax lots

contiglous to the subject property arid found that the subject prope{y was part of a tract on January

l,20ig, that contairieO a Oweliing. This is evidenced by Polk County Clerk Document 2018-

OOZZIS, dated March20,2018, which identifies John S. Walker as the owner of Tax Lots 818,

808, 813, and 809 of T8S, R5W, Section 28 on January 1,2019 and Po-lk County Clerk Document
2001-012491, dated September 24,200l,which identiles John S. Walker as the owner of Tax Lot
tt+ of fSS,Ii5W, Section 28 on January 1,2019. Tax Lot 810 of T8S, RsW, Section 28 was also

part of this tract, pursuant to Polk Courity Clerk -Document 
2001-010059, dated Ay8glt 3, 2001,

*t"ti"tt identifies' john S. Walker as the owner of the tax lot at that time. County Staff reviewed
2019 and202l Polk County Assessor's records for the tract and found that one (1) dwelling existed
on Tax Lot 813 on January 1,2019 and January 1,2021. The subject property.remained a p^al!9f
this tract on January 1,2621, until August 17; 2022, when Polk County Clerk Document 2022'
009479 had the effect of transferring the portion of the tract that contains a dwelling^to a different
ownership than Tax Lot 804. Anolher deed was subsequently recorded in Polk Coynty^Qle$
Document 2024-004665, on June 21,2024, that corrected an emor that included Tax Lot 818 in
the legal description for Polk County Clerk Document 2022-009479.

The Applicant submitted the application on October 30,2023, prior to November 1,2023;
therefoi6, establishment of a singi6-family may be allowed on the subject pryperty, which_was part
of a traci on January l, 2021, tfiat contained no more than one dwelling. Based on_ the. Hearings

Officer's findings iri this deciiion, the subject parcel qualifi99 for a small tract "template" dwelling
under PCZO I 3-8.080(8)(3), notwithstanding PCZO I 38.080(B)(3Xl)'

Therefore, the Hearings Officer finds the application complies with this criterion.

(C) NON-REMONSTRANCE DEED RESTRICTION Pursuant to OAR 660-006-
0029 (a)(e), for any dwelling, residential facility, private park, reservoir or water
imporiilciriient, home occupation, or private fis_hi1g or !ru_qtjn^g^ accommodations
approved under sections ig8.0SO, 138.060, 11q.080 and 138.090, and_ partitio^ns
approved under subsections f38.130(D) and (H) thro_ug! (K)' the.landowner for
tlie property shall be required to sign and record a deed restriction binding the

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page 8 of l8
8



landowner and the landowner's successors in interest, prohibiting them from
pursuing a claim for relief or cause of action allegiqB inj_ury!ryp llrpt_ng o1{o191t

irracticef for which no action or claim is allowed under ORS 30.936 to 30.937.

IPCZO 138.1401

For any dwelling approved under PCZO l3S.0S0(BX3), the_property owner shall berequired tosign
and relord a deid'restriction binding the landowner and landbwner's successors in interest from
pursuing a claim for relief or cause ofiction alleging injury from farming or forest practices for which
iro actio"n or claim is allowed under ORS 30.93d to-ZO.gli. County Staff recommends a condition of
approval that requires the Applicant to record a restrictive covenant (Attachment D) that complies

*iitt pCZO 138.i40, prior to 
^the 

issuan"e of building permits. The property gyler shall submit the

original document to the Polk County Clerk's Office for recording ilthe deed history ofthe.subject
pro"perty. The property owner shall pay the applicable recording f.^o,.fh.. ploperty. owner shall submit
'u.opy i,f tn. iecdrdeil deed restriciioh to th-e-Planning Division for inclusion in the record of FORD

23-01, prior to the issuance of building permits.

The Hearings Officer finds that with the above-recommended condition, the application complies
with this criterion.

138.110 GENERAL SITING STAI\DARDS FOR DWELLINGS AND
STRUCTURES [OAR 660-006-0029]. The following standards apply to all new
dwellings and structures:

(1) The following siting criteria or their equivalent shall apply to_all newdwellings
and structuies in- forest and agriculture/forest zones. These criteria are
designed to make such uses compatible with forest operations a-nd agricultureo
to m-inimize wildfire hazards and risks and to conserve values found on forest
lands. Dwellings and structures shall be sited on the parcel so that:

(a) They have the least impact on nearby or adjoining forest or agricultural
lands;

(b) The siting ensures that adverse impacts on forest operations and accepted
farming practices on the tract will be minimized;

(c) The amount of forest lands used to site access roads, service corridorso
the dwelling and structures is minimized; and

(d) The risks associated with wildfire are minimized.

(D)

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision
Page 9 of 18

(2) Siting criteria satisffing subsection (A) may include setbacks from adjoining
propErties, clustering near or among existing structures, siting close to existing
roads and siting on that portion of the parcel least suited for growing trees.

IPCZO 138.110(A)-(B)l

The standards listed above are general standards intended to help determine an appropriate location
for approved structures, including dwellings. According to the-2024 Polk County Asse.ssoros Report,

the sirbject tract is vacant. The Applicant is proposing to establish a dwelling on the subject property
under the "small tract template-dwelling" criteria.

LUBA has provided guidance that the level of detail regarding the actual homesite and dwelling is

much more'circumscrlbed at this state than it will be at the building permit stage. Neal v. Clacknmos
County, LUBA No. 2006-041,5-6 (Or. LUBA 711412006).-As LUBA has stated many times. in
addreising an approval uiterion a local government may: (1) find that the criterion is satisfied, or find
that it is Easibie to satisfy the criterion and adopt conditions of approval to ensure compliance; (2)

deny the proposal; or (3) defer its decision refarding that criterion- to a late,r stage that provid-es

equivaleni protections and rights of public participation. Id. (citing Rhyne v. Multnomah County,23
oR LrrBA 442, 447 -48 (1992)).

The siting standards evaluated by the Hearings Offrcer are examined individually and as a whole;

9



minimizing impacts of the siting of the proposed dwelling is the necessarY.lequirement. The analysis

in this decision is based on the proposed dwelling and access location in this application.

Based on County Staff s review of the2022 aerialphotograph and Polk County_GIS data, the subject
property is primarily managed for forest use and is zoned Farm/Forest g[). Pr.operties adjacent to
itre suUject iroperty to the Jouth, west, and east are zoned Farm/-Forest (F/F). 1A'djacent qlope{:s-,t9
the nofth of t6e sirbject property arc zoned Farm/Forest (FlF) and Exclusive Farm Use .(EFU).
Properties adjacent td ttreiuUljecttract range in size from approximately 2.4 acres to approximately
I12.0 acres. Adjacent properties to the norih, south, east, and_west are_p^rimarily managed.for forest
use, with some i.operties'being managed for a combination of farm and forest uses. According to the

Assessor's Map, seven (7) of t-he adjacent, contiguous properties haye a_ dwelling. Common forestry
practices on nbighboring properties may include, but aie not limited to, spraying,.thinning and

harvesting timbei, plantifif, and transporting of forest products. Common agricultural practices.on

neighbori-ng propetiies mali include, but are not limited to, plowing, seeding, fertilizing, harvesting
and grazin{,ipriying, and planting. These practices may create dust, noise, and odors.

Based on the plot plan provided by the Applicant (Attachment A_-l), the.dwelling is proposed to.be
sited in the nbrthwest iorner portion of t6e subject property. The Applicant provided a plot plan
depicting the general location bf ttre proposed dwelling irndi;rlaid with an aerial image, but did not
pr6videietbaiks of the proposed dweiting to the two cibsest propg4y lines. Based on the location of
the rectangle on the Appiicdnt's plot plan t-hat represents the geneial location of the proposed dwelling
in respect"to other f6atu.es of'the'area, the proposed dwelling would be setback approximately
betwe'en 85 and 160 feet away from the western property line, and approximately b^etween 100 and

170 feet from the northern property line. The proposed dwelling would be approximately bjtween
615 feet and 685 feet from the ciosest eastern pioperty line, and approximately between 560 feet and

620 feetfrom the closest southern property lihe.-Cointy Staff used the2022 aerial photograph and

measurement tools accessed through P6lk County GIS tb estimate these measurements. The location
of the proposed dwelling would mlet the minimum setbacks for the FarmlForest (F/F) Zone,rvlich
are front - thirty (30) feet, side - twenty (20) feet, and rear - twenty (20) feet, pursuant to PCZO
I 12.430(8). Aicordiirg to ihe Applicant;s ploi plan (Attachment A-l), the proposed dwelling would
be in the northwest colner of thb-subject property, close to the northern and western property lines

and the "flag pole" portion of the prop-erty 
-that 

provides access_to Monmouth HlghwaY, a public road.

The proposid dweiting would 6e 6uffi:red tiy 1!ees. frorn the neigl.boring forest operations and

dweliing to the north aid west and would be buffered from the-neighboring Plo^Perties to the south

and easiby trees located on the subject properly and setbacks ofgreater than 500 feet. Based on the

Applicantis plot plan and the 2022 ieriaf imageiaccess to the p_ropo.se{ dwelling would be taken from
M'onmouth ifignway via a proposed private-driveway located entirely on tlrg subject property. The
Applicant alsoitatei that th6 prbposed dwelling would be sited in the area of the propefY l.q:l suited

for'growing trees. County staff rbcommends a condition of approval that the proposed dwelling and

u."irr shall be established substantially in the location depicted on the Applicant's_plot Plan
(Attachment A-1). A condition of approvbl shall also require the dwellilg to comply with the setback

iequirements for the Farm/Forestione, which are frol!- thirty (30) feet, side - twenty (20) feet,
and rear - twenty (20) feet, pursuant to PCZO I 12.430(8).

County Staff reviewed the 2022 aerial image accessed through P_olk County GIS and finds that the

entire'subject property is cunently used f6r growing trees, with the_ exception of a pond on the

southem fortidn <jf fix Lot 818. The proposed dwelling location is located near the northern and

western properfy lines, close to the "flag pole" portion of the property that has frontage along
Monmouth Highway. The 2022 aerial image depi-cts that the entire property is forested; therefore
siting the dwel-iing in the northwest corner-of th-e property near the acce.ss_point would reduce the

amolnt of forestlind used for the access road and would allow the remainder of the property to be

managed for forestry use without fragmentation that could result if the dwelling were to be located
elsewhere on the subject property.

Here, based on the existing conditions on the subject property, the Hearings Officer finds that the
proposed structure and acc6ss road would impact minimal forestland, and are sited in a location that

FORD 23-01 - ln the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision
Page l0 of 18

l0



would allow the remainder of the property to be used for farm or forestry Plrposes. The H^earings

Officer also finds that there is no eviderice in the record to suggest that neighboring forestry or farming
practices would be curtailed or impeded as a result of the proposed dwelling and access locations.

The Environmental Health Division provided comments indicating that there are no septic records for
the subject property and the Applicdnt would need to apply fo1 a site evaluation to determine septic

feasibiiity. bouinty Stuff recom'mends a condition of approval that, prior to.establishing*the. dwelling,
the property o*n"r shall obtain all necessary pe-rmits from the Polk County^Puilding.and
Enviioninerital Health Divisions, and the Oregbn Department of Transportation (ODOT). These

permits may include, but are not limited to the following building..manufactured dwellingplacement,
'electrical, 

ilumbing, and mechanical permits from.the Bgilding D.ivision; septic site evaluation and

construction permiis from the Environmental Health Division; bnd a new or amended access permit
from ODOT.

The Hearings Officer finds that obtaining applicable permits would ensure that the 
^proposed

developmenTwould have the least impact on adj6ining farm and forest operations and t"ti:ry th.9 Sr"
Department's need for access and water. Also, in ordei_to ensure that the iisks associated with wildfire
are minimized, the property owner shall be required to comply with the fire siting standards for
dwellings and structures listed inPCZO 138.120'

The Hearings Officer finds the record contains substantial evidence that it is feasible for the
Applicant tisatisfy the general siting standards criteria and concurs with the above recommended
.,iriditionr of apprbval;ind finds th;t with these conditions of approval, the application complies
with these criterions.

(3) The applicant shall provide evidence to the golerning body that the domestic
water iupply is from a source authorized in accordance with the Water
Resources bbpartment's administrative rules for the appr_opriatlon of ground
water or surface water and not from a Class II stream as defined in the Forest
Practices rules (OAR chapter 629), For purposes of this section, evidence of a
domestic water suPPlY means:

(a) Verification from a water purveyor that the use described in the
application will be served by the purveyor under the purveyor's rights to
appropriate waterl

(b) 
f,yfr:::;ff :rtr""'H'i ;ilt"1"?*i5X*"' 

Resou rces Department ror the

(c) Verification from the Water Resources Departm_ent that a water use
permit is not required for the use described in the application. If the
proposed water Supply is from a well and is exemp!_ from permitting
iequirements under-ORs 537.5450 the applicant shall submit the well
coistructor's report to the county upon completion of the well. pCZO
138.110(C)l

The Applicant states that the proposed dwelling would receive water from Luckiamute Domestic
Water Cooperative. Therefore,-veiification from Luckiamute Domestic Water.Cooperative (LDWC)
that the use described in the application will be served by the purveyor under th9 pgrveygts rights.to
appropriate water would be r6quired. Alternatively, if water is not available from LDWC, the
p'rope'rty owner shall submit ihe well construcior's repqlt to the Polk County Community
bevelofment Department upon completion of the well. This development standard would be

applied at the time that the froperty owner applies for a building^ permit. To ensure compliance,
County Staff recommends this criterion be listed as a condition of approval.

The Hearings Officer finds that with the above recommended condition of approval, the application
complies with this criterion.

(4) As a condition of approval, if road access to the dwelling is by a road owned

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision
Page ll of18

ll



and maintained by a private party or by the Orggqn Department of Forestty'
the U.S. Bureau 6f f,anO Minagemeni or the U.S. Forest Service, then the
applicant shall provide proof of a long-term road access use permit or
agreement. The ioad use permit may_-rgqqrq tlq -uppli:ant to agree to accept

responsibility for road malntenance. IPCZO 138.11O(D)l

Based on the Applicant's plot plan and County plaff s re-view of the 2022 Polk.County aerial
photograph, access to the proposed dwelling worild be from N{onry9$!H.ighway, which is.apublic
;;rd ffii'"dined by the Orelon DepartmJnt of Transportation (ODOT), via a proposed private

driveway that would be located entirely on the subject property.

Therefore, the Hearings Officer finds that road access to the d-welling is not _by 
a road owned and

;;iil;i";a Uy u piiuui. party or by the Oregon Department of Forestry, the U.S. Bureau of Land

Management-or the U.S. For6st Service, and this criterion does not apply.

(S) Approval of a dwelling on a parcel or tract which is larger than 10 acres in
sDe shall be subject to the following requirements:

(a) Approval of a dwelling requires the owner of the tract to plant a sufficient
n.ititU"t of trees on th--e tract to demonstrate that the tract is reasonably
expected to meet Department of Folestry stocking. requirements at the
time specified in the Department of Forestry administrative rules.

(b) ffJ'#fi Lf"3 # ?il:l'"#: il:'I*:fi#r'[H;',5f.il 
n tv Ass esso r o f th e

(c) The property owner shall submit a stockilg lurvgy report to the Polk
Courity Asseisor and the Assessor shall verify t-hat_t-he minimum stocking^

requir"ements have been met by the time required by the Department of
Forestry Rules.

(d) Upon notification by the Assessor, the Department of Forestry will
determine whether the tract meets minimum stocking requirements of
the Forest Practices Act. If the Department determines that the tract does

not meet those requirements, the department will noti$ the owner and

f,:*#';ln jffi ffi lil'J:1"?:.?",T"it1tffi1#Jlff i:l?ilJHs
321.359 and impose additional tax.IPCZO 138.1l0(E)l

The subject tract contains approximately 23.1 acres. Bas_ed on a review of the 2022 aerial
photogrdph, the subject prop'eity appeari to be manage$ lor forest use. According to the 2^02!
irr.riorir Report, "the iubject t.iit is currently receiving forest tax deferral. County Staff
ieco111menas a condition of ipproval that the prop-erty owneishall submit a stocking report to the
pot[ County Assessor for thd Assessor to veritr,ihat theminimum stocking requirements for the

tract have b'een met by the time required by the Oregon Department of Forestry (ODF) Rules. If
the tract does not meet the minimuin stocking requirements, the Assessor may remove the forest

land designation pursuant to ORS 321.359 an-d impose additional tax pursuant to ORS 321.372'

The Hearings Officer finds that with the above recommended condition of approval, the

application complies with this criterion.

(E) 138.120 FrRE STTTNG STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS AI\D STRUCTURES

IOAR 660-006-00351. The following standards apply to all new dwellings and

structures:

(1) The dwelling shall be located upon a parcel within a fire protection district or
shall be proiided with residential fire protection bycontract..If the.dwelling is
not within a fire protection district, the applicant shall provide evidence that
the applicant has-asked to be included within the nearest such district. If the

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page 12 of I 8

t2



governing body determines that inclusion within a_fire_protection district or
contractiig foi residential fire protection is impracticable, the g-overning body
may provide an alternative ireans for protecting the- dwelling from fire
haiards. The means selected may include a fire sprinkling system, onsite
equipment and water storage or other methods that are reasonable, giv-en- the
siie ionditions. If a water *pply is required for fire protection, it shall be a
swimming pool, pond, lake, or similar 6ody of water that at all times contains
at least ai000 galions or a stream that has a continuous y€_ar round flow of at
Ieast one cubil foot per second. The applicant shall provide verification from
the Water Resources Department that any permits or registrations required
for water diversion or storage have been obtained or that permits_ or
registrations are not required lor the use. Road access shall be provided to
wiitrin 15 feet of the water's edge for firefighting pumping units. The road
access shall accommodate the turnaround of firefighting equipment during the
fires season. Permanent signs shall be posted along the access route to indicate
the location of the emergency water source. IPCZO 138'120(A)l

The subject property is located within an area served.by the Polk.CountyTire District #1. The Fire

Oittrict jrtouidei coinments indicating that they yggld rieed to veriff. that the subject property would
have ad6quate access and water prior to residential development on the property.

The Hearings Officer finds that these standards would be evaluated at the time of building permits.

The Hearings Officer finds that the application complies with this criterion.

@ Road access to the structure shall meet the County road design standards.

IPCZO l38.l2o(B)l

The access would be from Monmouth Highway via a proposed private driveway located entirely on

the subject property. County Staff recommends a condltioh o{qpp_ro.yalhat the property owner shall

be respionsible'for'ensurin! that the road access complies with Polk County Standards for Private

Roads Serving Dwellings in Forest Zones (Attachment B).

The Hearings Officer finds that with the above recommended condition, the application complies
with this criterion.

(3) The owners of the dwellings and structures shall maintain a primary-fuel-free
break area surrounding all structures and clear and maintain a s_econdary fuel-
free break area on lanii surrounding the dwelling that is owned or controlled
by the owner in accordance with the provisions in "Recommend_ed Fire Siting
Standards for Dwellings and Structuies and Fire Safety Design Standards for
Roads" dated March 1, 1991, and published by the Oregon Department of
Forestry. IPCZO I 38. 120(C)l

According to "Recommended Fire Siting Standards for Dwellings. and Structures and Fire Safety

Design Siandards for Roads" dated Mafth l, 1991, and_publis[ld by the Oregon Department_of
Foreitry (ODF), Section B "Fuel Break Standards" (Attachment C), the primary Pfety zone is a.fire
brsak extbndii{aminimum of 30 feet in all directions around structures, and increasing as slope

increases to l0o7or greater. The Applicant did not provide setbacks from pr^operty lines or a scaled

plot plan, but Count! Staff was abi6 to replicate_the approximate location of theproposed dwelling
io.uiion using the underlaid aerial on the Applicant3s plot plan (Attachment A-1). Based on the
location of thl rectangle on the Applicant's plot plan intended to represent the approximate area

in which the proposeJdwelling w6utO be located, the proposed dwelling.would be approximately
between SS aild i6O feet away hom the western property line, and approximately between 100 and

170 feet from the northern prbperty line, which would be the two (2) closest property. lines. County
Staff used Polk County GIS t6olsio measure the average slope of the propose.d. building area^ard

determined that it woild be located on a slope of approximately l3Yo downhill to the west,260/o

downhill to the south, 25Yo downhill to the southwest, and llYo downhill to the southeast. These

FORD 23-01 .- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page l3 of l8
l3



slopes would require an additional primary safety zone of 50 feet to the west and southeast and

100 feet to the south and southwest.

The Planning Director approved the application finding that the Pfgpo,sed dwelling location based

on the Appliiant's plot piin indicates ihat a primary^s{9ty zone of 80 feet could be accommodated
to th. *is't and rouih"urt. A primary safety'zone of tf O i'eet could be accommodated to the south

and southwest. Based on County Staffs-measurements using Polk Counly GtS tools and the

Applicant's plot plan, the proposLd dwelling location could accommodate the minimum primary

ru?6ty ,on. df 30 f"et'in alf diiections and ad-clitional primary safety.zone. of 50 feet to the west and

soutlieast and 100 feet to the south and southwest on land surrounding the dwelling that is owned-

Uy tn. suUject property owner. The secondary fuel break is a fuel break extending a minimum of
t0O feet in all directions around the primary safety zone'

The Appellants are neighboring property owners who own propgrty to.the.north and west of the

ruUi.rl iroperty. The ap'peal inituOei conce.ns about the propos_ed dwelling's compliance with the

een"eral'and fire siting'slandards, including the proposed dwelling's compliance with fuel break

i.quir.rn"nts, the risliof fire, and minimiz'ing-th'e uieof &restlands. The Appellants assert that a

ptirnuty fuel break of 30 feet and a secondary-fuel b-reak of 1.00 feet w_ould be.required on the north
iid. of ttrr proposed dwelling, totaling 130 ibet of fuel break. According to.the Appellants, a 100-

ioot r.tUu"k, .hi"h is the frinimum-setback proposed by the Applicant_based on the plot plan

provided, would not be able to accommodate a 130-foot fuel break.liryjlgly, the Appellants assert

ttiat a frimary fuel break of 130 feet and a secondary_fuel.break of 100 feet would be required on

ttre wjstem side of the proposed dwelling. At the pirUtic hearing, the Appellants reaffirmed their
*iit.n appeal and pres'ented testimony that in ord'er to comply with this condition, the amended

dwelling'lbcation must be situated in tfie place that both the primary and secondary fuel break can

be entirEly accommodated on the subjeciproperty. The Appellants also reaffirmed the previously
suggested siting of the proposed dweliing in the sbuthern portion.of the subject property..It is clear

io Tfie HearingJOm""r that the Appellarits are concerned 
-about 

the potential of increased fire risk.
At tt't. public"hearing the Appellairts also requested to be notified of all building permits requested

by the hpplicant anJto hav-e a meetingwith fhe director of Polk County Community Development'
The Hearings Officer does not have-the authority to_direct meetings occYl between community
members aid County Staff, nor to require the Applicant to provide notifications every time a

building permit is requested.

The Hearings Officer must review the record in its entirety because approval for the application must

Ue supporte? by substantial evidence. Thg Hgqr-r1gs Offiggr Tly alsb review Oregon case law for
guidairce. The Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) clarified.in Landwatch Lane County,y.^L^qn-"

tounty (LUBA No. 2018-078) thatthe language in Oregon Administrative Rule.s (94R) 660-006.-

0035(i)'requires a secondary fuel break &ly-"on land that is owned or controlled by the owner"
in the c-ase where a subject pi'operty owner d6es not own or control 100 feet outside.of.theprimary
fuel break. The Hearings Ofiiier must apply the evidence in the record to the applicable law.

In response to the arguments raised by the Appellant, County Staff used Polk County Geographic
Information System-(GIS) tools to compare the approximate amount of additional driveway
extension that would Le required to access the dweliiirg location proposed in the application and

the dwelling location propoied by the Appellant. The entirety of the northwest corner of the subject
property wfr'.r. the pr^oposed dwi:lling site would be is forested, so both the location the Applicant

irrofro.6A and the l6cation the Appelant proposed would require using forestland to access the

i*itting. Based on County Staff 
'sineasurements, 

the dwelling location proposed by the.Applicant
would iequire approximately 50 additional feet of driveway_to _access the p_roposed_ dwelling
comparedio the'dwelling loiation proposed by the Appellant. The.Hearings Offrcer finds that this
addiiional 50 feet is maiginal and, in most circumsfances, would not_ necessart-ly U" considered
inconsistent with OAR 660-006-0029(l)(c), provided justification is given for the proposed
location of the dwelling that complies with the criteria in OAR 660-006-0029'

FORD 23-01 - In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page 14 of I 8

t4



The Appellants have suggested moving the proposed "template" dwelling t9. th9 so.uthern portion
of the iuU.le"t property. Fl-owever, the gineral siting requiretnents, discussed in detail above, focus

on reduciig impact to the subjeci prop-erty as well as tlie surrounding properties. Additionally, the
record coniainisubstantial evidence that iiting the dwelling in the northwest corner of the property
near the access point is in the area of the property least suited_for growing trees and would allow the

remainder of th6 property to be managedfoifor-estry use withouffragmentation that could result if
the dwelling were to be located elsewhere on the subject property.

The Hearings Officer finds that while requiring the proposed dwelling. to be 130 feet away from
the northeniproperty line and 230 feetfr6m the weslern property line is not necessary to comply
with the fuel'break iequirements in PCZO 138.120(C) or to minimize the amount of forest lands

used for development found inPCZO 138.1l0(A)(3); it is reasonable that increasing the setbacks

of the proposed d*elling from the two closest prgperty lines may reduce the risks associated with
wildfiie pursuant b PLZO l38.ll0(A)(4) dnd-minimize adverse impacts to forestlands on

adjoiningproperties pursuant to PCZO I 38. I 10(A)(l)'

On August 1,2024,the Applicant's representative prgvjdg{ comments in the record indicating that
the Apilicant will igree fo the additional setback 6nd fuel breaks requested by the Appellants and

requeifed that the decision be amended to reflect additional setback requirements.

County Staff recommends the Hearings Officer amend Condition of Approval No. I and Condition
of Approval No, 4 of FORD 23-01 to read:

l. This approval is for one (l) single-family dwelling on the subject property. The dwelling
and aicess road shall 6e estiblished 

-substantially in the location identified in the
applicant's plot plan (Attachment A-l), in the northwest corner of the subjgcl property,
*ittr a miniinum setback of 130 feet from the northern property line and 230 feet from
the western property line. This dwelling approval is specific to the_size and configuration
of the subjeit tract presented and eval-ua-ted in this application..Reconfiguration of the
subject tra"ct prior to establishing the dwelling would invalidate this approval.

4. The property owner shall maintain a primary fuel-free break area suffounding.the
dweliing, an-d clear and maintain a secondary fgel{ree break area on land surrounding
the dweiiing in accordance with the provisions in "Recommended Fire Siting Standards
for Dwellin-gs and Structures and Fire Safety Design Standards for Roads" dated March
l, 1991, and published by the Oregon Department of Forestry, Section B "Fuel Break
Standards" (Attachment C).

The Hearings Officer finds the amended setbacks of the dwellin_g location should be: approximately
130 foot fr6m the northern property line, approximately 230 feet from the western property line,
approximately 475 feet from the easiern propd!.y line,_and appgoximately 530 feet from the southern

pi'operty tine. additionally, County Staff u3ed Polk County-GIS tools to measure the.slope. 
"1119imenatiO dwelling location and det-ermined that it would be located on a slope of approximTtgly 2/12

downhill to the soirthwest, approximately l2o/o downhill to the northwest, approximately S%downhill
to the south, and approximat6ly 25Yo do\unhill to the west. These slopes would. require an additional
primary safety zoir-e of 50 feei to the northwest, 7 5 feet t9 the. southwest, and 100 feet to the west'
The H6aringi Officer finds that the amended dwelling location could accommodate the primary
fuel break if 30 feet and these additional primary fuel break areas, as well as a majority o{the
secondary fuel break on land that is owned and controllgd by the subject propgrty owner. With
regards to amended Condition #4,the Hearings Officer further revises the condition of.approval
to-be consistent with the criteria language ab-ove and sets forth revised amended Condition # 4
below:

4. The property owner shall maintain a primary fu_el-free break area surrounding the
dweliing, an-d clear and maintain a secondary fuel-free break area on land that is owned
and conlrolled by the owner surrounding the dwelling in accordance with thegovisions
in "Recommend-ed Fire Siting Standards for Dwellings and Structures and Fire Safety

FORD 23-01 - In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision
Page l5 of l8

l5



Design Standards for Roads" dated March 1, 1991,. ?.nd. 
published lV the Oregon

Depirtment of Forestry, Section B "Fuel Break Standards" (Attachment C).

With the amended condition #l and revised amended condition #4, the Hearings Officer finds that

tfi. n.* a*"lling location would continue to comply yjth_t]re general siting standards and satisfies

the fire siting standards found inPCZO 138'110 and 138.120.

The Hearings Officer finds there is substantial evidence in the record that with the amended conditions

of approvai-set forth above, this application complies with the criterion.

(4') The dwelling shall meet the following requirements:

(a) The dwelling has a fire-retardant roof.

(b) The dwelling will not be sited on a slope of greater than 40 percent.

(c) If the dwelling has a chimney or chimneys, each chimney has a spark
arrester. IPCZO I 38. I 20(D)l

The Applicant states that the proposed dwellingwould.provide proof.of the structure havingja fire-
retardant roof at the time of building permits, and any chimneys would have a spark arrester. County

Sdff s slope measurements using Foik County GlSiools. indicate thal tle proposed dwelling yoqld
noi U" locited on a slope of grealer than 40%i based on th-e location depicted in the Applicant's.plot
pfun Cttta"ttment A-l). To eisure compliance, County staffrecommends that the above criteria listed

inPCZO 138.120(D) be included as a condition of approval.

The Hearings Officer finds that with this condition of approval, the application complies with these

criteria.

IV. CONCLUSIONS
Based on the Review and Decision Criteria above, the Hearings Officer believes there is sufficient

evidence in the record to APPROVE the proposed template dwelling and determine it is consistent

with the Polk County Zoning Ordinance provisions for a small tract template dwelling in the F/F

Zone. However, the Hearings Officer further concurs with County Staff in imposing the conditions

of development discussed in Section III and listed below in order to ensure compliance with the

applicable review and decision criteria.

Appeals to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) may only be based on Review and Decision

Criteria contained in Section III, above.

Any modifications to conditions shall be approved in accordance with provisions of law (e.g.,

variance, subsequent land use application).

Conditions of Anproval:

L This approval is for one (1) single-family dw.elling on.the gubjggt pJgpgryy. The dwelling
and acbess road shall be eitiblis[ed substantially in the location identified in the applicant's
plot plan (Attachment A-l), in the northwest coiner of the subject property, with a minimum
ietbick oi t:O feet from the northern property line and 230 feet from the westernproperty
line. This dwelling approval is specific tb the size and configuration of the subject tract
presented and evaiuat6d in this ipplication..Reconfiguration of the subject tract prior to
-establishing 

the dwelling would invalidate this approval.

2. Prior to establishing the dwelling, the property owner shall obtain all necessary permits from
the Polk County nuilOing and Environmental Health Divisions, and.the. Oregon Department
of Transportati6n (ODOT;. these permits may include, but are not limited to the following:
building, manufaciured dwelling placement, 

-electrical, 
plumbing, and mechanical permits

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker -- Hearings Officer's Decision

Page 16 of I 8

16



from the Building Division; septic site evaluation and construction permits from the

Environmental Heilth Division; and a new or amended access permit from ODOT.

3. The proposed dwelling shall comply wrlh the yard setback standards for the Farm/Forest

Zoniigbirt i"t listed i-n PCZO 112.430@). Thgsq s^etback standards are: front - thirty (30)

feet, side - twenty (20) feet, and rear - twenty (20) feet.

4. The property owner shall maintain a primary fuel-free break area surrounding the dwelling,
and ilea'r an'd maintain a secondary ftiel-free break area on land that is owned and controlled
by the owner surrounding the dweiling in a_ccordance withJhe provisiols in "Recommended
Flre Siting Standards foi Dwellingsind Structures and Fire-Safety Desjgn Standards for
Roads" dited March l, 1991, and fublished by the Oregon Department of Forestry, Section

B "Fuel Break Standards" (Attachment C).

5. The dwelling shall meet the following requirements:

(a) The dwelling has a fire-retardant roof.

(b) The dwelling will not be sited on a slope of greater than 40 percent.

(c) If the dwelling has a chimney or chirnneys, each chimney has a spark arrester.

6. The property owner shall construct and/or improve the driv_eway to comply with Polk County
Stan'dards for Private Roads Serving Dwellings in Forest Zones (Attachment B)'

7 . Prior to the issuance of building permits, the property owner shall record with the Pol\ C-oy1ty

Clerk's Office a non-remonstrlnce deed restiiction (Auachment D) that complies with PCZO
138.140. The deed restriction shall prohibit the property owner from pursuing a claim for relief
or cause of action alieging injury frbm farming or iorest practices for which no action or claim
is allowed under OnS-f O.-qf 6 630.937. The ploperty owner shallpay the applicable recording
fees. The propefty owner shall submit a copy of the recorded deed restriction to the Planning
Division fbr inclusion in the record for FORD 23'01.

8. The property owner shall submit a stocking report to the Polk County. Assessor for the

Assessoi to verify that the minimum stocking requirements for the tract have been.met by
the time required by the Oregon Departmentbf Fbrestry (ODF) Rules. If the tract does not
meet the -inirnurn stockin-g requirements, the Assessor may remove the forest land
designation pursuant to ORS-321.3S9 and impose additionaltax pursuant to ORS 321'372.

g. The property owner shall provide evidence to the goveming-body that the domestic water
ruppiy ii from a source authorized in accordance with the Water Resources Department's
administrative rules for the appropriation of ground water or surface water and not from a

Class II stream as defined in t6e Forest Practices rules (OAR chapter 629).For purposes of
this section, evidence of a domestic water supply meansl

(a) Verification from a water purveyor that the use described in the application will be

served by the purveyor under the purveyor's rights to appropriate water;

(b) A water use permit issued by the Water Resources Department for the use described
in the application; or

(c) Verification from the Water_ Resources.Department that a water use permit. is not
requrred for the use described in the application. If thepropgs^e{-ryale1_supply is.from
a well and is exempt from permitting iequirements under ORS 537.545, the^ applicant
shall submit the well consfructor's report to the county upon completion of the well.

VI. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A-1 Applicant's Plot Map

Attachment A-2 Map created by Polk County Community Development Staff

FORD 23-01 -- In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page 17 of I 8

t7



Attachment B

Attachment C

Attachment D

Polk County Standards for Private Roads Serving Dwellings in Forest

Zones

Recommended Fire Siting Standards for Dwellings and Structures and

Fire Safety Design Standlrds for Roads" dated March l, 1991, and
published by Origon Department of Forestry (ODF), Section B "Fuel
Break Standards"

Non-remonstrance Deed Restriction

VII. EFFECTIVE DATE; APPEAL

This Order takes effect upon the expiration of the time allowed for an appeal, if no appeal is filed.

If an appeal is filed, this Order does not take effect until the final decision on-the appeal.has taken

eifect."The Polk County Planning Division cannot assist in preparation of an appeal, byt wiU
p;;tid" information on hbw an app-eal can be filed. TIME IS OF THp ESSENCE IN FILING AN
hpppef. The Planning Division will provide information on applicable deadlines.

Dallas, Oregon,

August 38'n ,2024.

bth. r{rrrr.Z
Leslie Howell

Polk County Hearings Officer

FORD 23-01 - In the Matter of John Steven Walker - Hearings Officer's Decision

Page l8ofl8
18


	24-147 Memo.pdf
	15686 Polk County  - JCP Funds.pdf
	SECTION 1: AUTHORITY
	SECTION 2: PURPOSE
	SECTION 3: EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION
	SECTION 4: GRANT MANAGERS
	SECTION 5: PROJECT ACTIVITIES
	SECTION 6: GRANT FUNDS
	SECTION 7: DISBURSEMENT GENERALLY
	SECTION 8: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
	SECTION 9: OWNERSHIP
	SECTION 10: CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
	SECTION 11: INDEMNITY/LIABILITY
	SECTION 12: INSURANCE
	SECTION 13: GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION
	SECTION 14: ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	SECTION 15: DEFAULT
	SECTION 16: REMEDIES
	SECTION 17: WITHHOLDING FUNDS, RECOVERY
	SECTION 18: TERMINATION
	SECTION 19: MISCELLANEOUS
	SECTION 20: SIGNATURES



	Staff Contact: Jodi Merritt
	Department: Community Corrections
	Title: Director
	Consent Calendar Date: 
	Contractor Name: Criminal Justice Commission
	Contractor Address: 885 Summer Street NE
	City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301
	From: 9/1/2024
	Thru: 6/30/2025
	Contract Amount: $239,314.00
	Sole Source: Off
	Competitive Quote: Off
	Formal Bid: Off
	Request for Proposals: Off
	Personal Services: Off
	Special/Exempt: Yes
	Special Exempt: Grant Funds
	Discussion: The Oregon Criminal Justice Commission provides opportunity to apply for grant funds to support Oregon localities. In fulfilling the requirements of House Bill 4002 (2024), as a collaborative program between law enforcement agencies and behavioral health entities that assist individuals who may have substance use disorder, another behavioral health disorder or co-occurring disorders, to create  community-based pathways to treatment, recovery support services, housing, case management or other services.
	Fiscal Impact: This agreement provides $239,314.00 in revenue to Polk County.
	Recommendation: It is recommended Polk County Community Corrections be allowed to enter into this agreement.
	E-mail: hittle.sam@co.polk.or.us
	Email 3: 
	Name 1: Sam Hittle
	Name 2: 
	E-mail 2: 
	Name 3: 


